
May 12, 2017 

 

Township of Belleville 
Mr. Mauro Tucci, Township Manager 
152 Washington Avenue 
Belleville, NJ  07109 

 

Re: 170 Washington Avenue, Belleville NJ 

Mr. Tucci, 

As is historically consistent with Belleville, through various backchannels, I have become aware of 
renewed interest in the status and condition of my property. 

As you are aware, the property is a construction job site with active permits. While interior work 
progresses, I believe you and the Council need to understand that I am somewhat handicapped by 
orders and policies that predate your tenure with the Township.   To that end, allow me to fill you in. 

In June, 2015, the Belleville Police Department issued a ‘Patrol Division Lookout’ (see attached) 
instructing officers and desk personnel to ‘keep check in Municipal Lot for trucks making deliveries for 
the building on the north side of the lot.’   The lookout, which clearly targeted my property, went on 
to instruct, ‘advise drivers and have trucks moved from the lot.’   Putting aside for the time being, the 
fact that my property was placed under video surveillance, by intentionally redirecting cameras at my 
building with instructions not to move them.  On more than one occasion this order was acted upon 
and deliveries were refused and contractors were asked to move their legally parked vehicles out of 
the lot.  To date, that written order, which had a duration of ‘until further notice,’ has since not been 
rescinded.  

Next, several weeks after the lookout order was issued, my attorney received a somewhat bizarre 
letter from the Township Attorney.  The letter addressed my attorney by the wrong name, and 
incorrectly stated that I called his office, which I never did.   That said, the letter went on to state that 
I need to make a formal request to the governing body in order to access my property through the 
public lot.  This demand, of course , is ridiculous, especially when you consider that I actively 
constructed my building, received deliveries and entered my property through the municipal lot for 
eight months, uninhibited, prior to this ‘Lookout’ and the Township Attorney’s letter. To be clear, 
both of these examples occurred only after serving the lawsuit upon the Township, and again, eight 
months after construction began.   

These two examples, along with many others, including a letter from Councilman Kennedy, written 
on his Council letterhead and addressed to the then Planning Board attorney, which is in direct 
violation of the Faulkner Act. In his letter, he demanded an investigation into my approved variance.  
My lawsuit discovery uncovered this letter, along with evidence that it was actually acted upon and 



an investigation was performed.  Again, his letter was written and issued, nearly two years after my 
variance was approved, although coincidently, days after my lawsuit was served.  These examples are 
the basis of my amended complaint citing retaliation.   Speaking of retaliation, the timing of these 
most recent ‘complaints’ perfectly coincide with my very public statements regarding potentially  
being involved in next May’s municipal election.   

Mr. Tucci, since your tenure as Township Manager began, you have been accommodating. As a 
matter of fact, at one point you orally granted permission for my contractor to use a small portion of 
the parking lot for a scissor lift (on a Saturday) in order to complete the exterior sheathing.  This 
scenario was different, as we needed to use a part of the parking lot for equipment.  I remain 
steadfast that I do not need permission, as various owners over the past forty years have not needed 
permission, to merely enter the public parking lot to access the property.   That said, please 
understand that at one point before your tenure, I received a call from the Construction Code 
Department about debris piled on the back of my property.  That same day, I had my dumpster 
contractor go to the property to clean up.  He was kicked out of the lot by the police before he could 
back his truck onto my property.  A DPW truck was then parked illegally (for days) in the parking lot, 
blocking access to my property.  The Police Chief then text me to have the contractor return, and 
stated that he would be allowed to make the pickup.  Upon his return, he was nearly arrested and 
kicked out again, for the second time.  It should be noted that the contractor is also a Newark Police 
Detective, and the Chief’s texts and the precise incident details are well documented.   

Mr. Tucci, I believe you have a responsibility to the taxpayers to review this case in its entirety, as 
continuing to kick the can down the road will inevitably prolong my delays and continue to increase 
my damages.  As you can see from the above examples, I have already lost two years as I continue to 
wait for my day in Court.    Thankfully, I tirelessly pursued justice with regard to the first part of my 
case, and two government agencies eventually stepped in and ordered the immediate resignation of 
your predecessor.  The only matter is still pending from the first part of my case is who will reimburse 
the Township for the nearly $240,000 illegally earned by your predecessor.  I urge you not to rely on 
the Township Attorney’s clearly biased opinion. After all, it was his terrible opinion on the clearest 
four sentence statute ever written by the State Legislature that was the beginning of this suit.  While 
it remains to be seen if the Township Attorney will ever be held accountable, I wonder just how many 
cases which started because of personal or political motivations have been won?   I believe a quick 
look at ELECT filings will satisfy any questions as to why so many cases are so graciously assigned out.  

In conclusion, the Township cannot have it both ways.  I cannot be barred from accessing the 
property and then be asked to address issues and complete exterior construction.   Those Council 
persons asking why the outside of the building is not complete need to know that it’s because of the 
orders and policies set by the very Township they represent which prohibit me.  While you have been 
cooperative in your tenure, it does not erase the damage which has been done and is ongoing.  If the 
Township is serious about having this project move forward, I respectfully ask for the police 
department order to be rescinded, along with the demand to make a formal request to the governing 



body in order to access my property through the public lot.   Once my contractors are assured they 
will no longer be harassed, exterior construction can resume.   

I thank you in advance for you time and attention to this matter.  

 

Michael A. Melham 

 

 

CC: Mayor and Council 
Mr Mark Minichini, Police Chief 
Mr Frank DeLorenzo, Construction Official 
 








